
COMBINED BOARD OF SELECTMAN AND BOARD OF FINANCE 
PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING  
MINUTES OF MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2011 

 
Pursuant to the call and written notice, the Public Budget Hearing of the Board of Selectman and the Board of 
Finance was held on Thursday, February 17, 2011 at 7:00 pm in the Board of Education Administrative Offices, 
Seminar Room 300, 501 Kings Highway East, Fairfield, Connecticut. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chairman Thomas Flynn, Robert Bellitto, Jr., Ken Brachfeld, James Brown (7:25), Christopher DeWitt, Kevin 
Kiley (8:40), Mary LeClerc, Robert Stone, Michael Tetreau 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
None 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Paul Hiller, Chief Fiscal Officer and Clerk of the Board of Finance 
Kenneth Flatto, First Selectman, Town of Fairfield 
Sherri Steeneck, Board of Selectmen 
James Walsh, Board of Selectmen 
Linda Gardiner, Budget Director, Town of Fairfield 
Richard White, Director of Public Works, Town of Fairfield 
David Title, Superintendent of Schools, Board of Education, Town of Fairfield 
Bonnie McWain, Director of Finance, Board of Education, Town of Fairfield 
Thomas Cullen, Director of Operations, Board of Education, Town of Fairfield 
John Mitola, Pam Iacono, Tim Kery, Board of Education, Town of Fairfield 
 
Chairman Flynn called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  
 
Chairman Flynn asked for a moment of silence in memory of Betty Morris, Walter Flynn’s mother in law, who 
died this past week. 
 
Chairman Flynn requested that the Board continue the review of the budget as of December 31, 2010 that was 
halted at the last meeting due to time constraints. Chairman Flynn noted that the subjects of snow removal and 
the Penfield Pavilion Project were of particular interest to the Board at this time. 
 
REVENUES 
 
Mr. Hiller reported that revenues are running with or over budget estimates. Mr. Hiller also reported that tax 
revenues were at 75.4% last year while this year, at this time, they are at 75.2% with 9 days to go until last 
year’s figure was calculated. Both Mr. Flatto and Mr. Hiller are comfortable with the revenue rates. 
 



Combined Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance 
Public Budget Hearing 
Minutes of Meeting February 17, 2011 
 
Mr. Hiller reported that the Town has received $220K from the Video Competition Trust Grant. Mr. Hiller 
explained that this grant is part of a tax on home cable service so there is no way to determine how much money 
will be received every year but he is confident that Fairfield will receive funds again this coming year. 
Chairman Flynn asked Mr. Hiller to prepare an analysis of Town dump scale revenues with subsidies for the 
Board to review. 
 
EXPENDITURES 
 
The Board asked Mr. Hiller to look into the reason for the Private School Transportation budget showing only 
28% used at this point in the fiscal year. 
The Board asked Mr. Hiller to check on the reason that the IT Department has already spent $11K in Printing, 
Copying, etc. when the budget for that item was set at $700. 
Mr. Hiller reported that Workers Compensation is becoming an increasingly difficult amount to predict; the 
largest accrual in the Internal Services Fund is Workers Compensation. 
In response to a question from the Board concerning the trend with health insurance actives, Mr. Hiller noted 
that the trend is up as presented by AON at the meeting held on February 15, 2011. 
In response to a question from the Board concerning the possibility that the Fire Department Payroll and 
Overtime accounts might be an issue again this year, Mr. Flatto stated that the vacancy line will probably go 
over budget by as much as $200K this year. 
Mr. White reported on the snow removal budget to date. Mr. White stated that there have been 11 events so far 
this FY at a cost of $900K which includes overtime, materials, and contractor costs. Mr. White also stated that 
the budget for this line item was $415K. Mr. White informed the Board that FEMA will be giving the Town 
some funds for the one terrible storm and Mr. White reported that his department will delay some hiring to 
make up some of the remaining deficit. Mr. White also explained that some of the materials account could also 
be used to help offset the deficit. Mr. White distributed a comparison report of snow removal costs between 
Fairfield, Westport, and Greenwich which showed that Fairfield spent the lowest amount per mile for snow 
removal. 
Mr. Flatto stated that he would prefer not to seek monies from the Contingency Account at this time for the 
snow removal costs. Mr. Flatto stated that he would rather reassess the situation in May or June of this year so 
that a more accurate figure would be available. 
Mr. Flatto also noted that there is $190K in the Contingency Account that could still be utilized. 
Mr. Hiller reported that the Board of Education is also significantly over budget for snow removal this year and 
he distributed a report from Dave Fryer on the subject for the Board’s information. 
Mr. White stated that a great deal of credit should go to Scott Bartlett and George Kascegowicz of his 
department for the admirable work they have done with the storms this year. Mr. White stated that both men 
took every storm as a real challenge and they treated their crews very well, which is evident in the minimal 
amount of lost time from no-shows and sick days after a great deal of overtime has been required. 
Mr. White then addressed the Penfield Pavilion Project. Mr. White stated that excavation revealed more work 
than was anticipated and that extra work took the project into the heart of snow season; extremely low 
temperatures had an impact on the curing of the concrete; the project is now 8 weeks behind schedule but the 
contractor is trying to make up some time in ways that will not add to the cost of the project. Mr. Whiter 
informed the Board that the footing are 100% done and 42% of the columns are poured. Mr. White added that 
the contractor is prioritizing the elements of the project and Mr. White will report back to the Board around the 
end of the month with more information. 

       Page 2 of 5 



Combined Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance 
Public Budget Hearing 
Minutes of Meeting February 17, 2011 
 
 
The First Selectman presented the Capital Improvement Projects totaling $4,358,000 to the Board. 

 
Chairman Flynn noted that the purpose of reviewing these projects at the start of the budget process is to 
separate them from the budget process. Chairman Flynn also noted that the Board hopes to vote on these items 
earlier, say March or April, in an attempt to give both sections of the budget process their due attention. 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION PROJECTS 
Dr. Title, Mr. Cullen and Mr. Mitola presented the Board of Education items to the Board. 
Mr. Cullen presented the details of the projects to the Board totaling $1,695,000. Mr. Cullen noted that schools 
with dual fuel systems are using only gas (for the last 2-3 years); a problem arises when heating oil is sitting in 
underground tanks without being used and sludge is created which can foul systems when used at a later time. 
Mr. Hiller noted that these projects could be bonded for 5 years at the request of the Board. Dr. Title, in 
response to a question from the Board regarding the useful life of these projects, responded that these projects 
are all in the BOE Long Range Facilities Plan, year 1. Mr. Hiller noted that each project should be set up in the 
system as a separate item so the dollars could be tracked. Mr. Hiller also noted that bonding could not be done 
until the money has been spent. 
Chairman Flynn asked Mr. Cullen for a report on the costs of other similar projects that have already been done. 
Ms. Steeneck asked Mr. Cullen for a cost benefit analysis and payback estimates for energy savings from these 
new projects. 
Chairman Flynn also asked Mr. Cullen for a report detailing the estimated useful lives of the projects presented 
to the Board. 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Peter Ambrose, RTM District 2 

Please invite members of the RTM to participate in any tours of buildings that are scheduled. 
 
TOWN OF FAIRFIELD PROJECTS 
 
Fire Pumper Replacement 
Doug Chavenello gave an update on the new pumper scheduled for delivery in August of this year. Mr. 
Chavenello reported that the truck is ahead of schedule and will be delivered this spring. Mr. Chavenello also 
noted that he felt there should be a line item for new fire trucks, at $450K yearly, in the budget so when a truck 
is needed, the funding would be available. 
 
New Fire Training Center on One Rod Highway 
Assistant Chief Chris Tracey and Mr. White presented this item to the Board. 
Mr. White reported that the training center is housed at the old NIKE site and the site dates back to the 1950’s; 
the site was remediated years ago but some contaminates are still thought to be present and it is his 
recommendation that the $120K would cover the costs of remediating this location so that the new training 
center can proceed. 
Mr. Tracey explained the history of this project and noted that the only expense to the Town is the remediation; 
the State is paying for the rest of the project, estimated to be about $8M. MR. Tracey also noted that State funds 
have been used to maintain this facility as a regional training site since 1971. Mr. Tracey also reported that 

       Page 3 of 5 



Combined Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance 
Public Budget Hearing 
Minutes of Meeting February 17, 2011 
 
maintenance costs are not Fairfield’s responsibility and this is stated in the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU), but, rather, is funded through State funds. 
 
Senior Center Roof 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board.  
Mr. White, in response to a question from the Board, reported that the estimate for this project came from Mr. 
Cullen. Mr. Brown indicated that it is his opinion that this estimate is very high and he will speak with the 
vendor since this is an area that he has experience with in his position. Mr. Flatto suggested that the TFC also be 
asked for input based on their expertise. 
 
Harbor Road Bridge 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board.  
Mr. Hiller reported that he had a conversation regarding this item with Bond Counsel today. Mr. Hiller also 
noted that he, Mr. Flatto, and Mr. Cleary have all worked with our State Legislative people over the last three 
years but no money has been forthcoming from the State for this project. 
Mr. White reviewed the history of this project with the Board. Mr. White stated that this project was part of the 
State Bridge Program and the bridge was actually completed in 2007 but there was a change order that took a 
very long time to resolve with the State and that is the money that is being requested in this project. Because the 
change order was still unresolved in 2009 when the State Legislature voted to eliminate the State Bridge 
Program (March 20, 2009), we were unable to recoup the money needed for the change order. Mr. White noted 
also that he had negotiated with the contractor on the amount of the change order and this is a greatly reduced 
amount from the original change order. Mr. White also noted that 93.4% of the cost of this project was covered 
and paid by State and Federal Grant money. 
Chairman Flynn asked Mr. Hiller to contact Bond Counsel and consult with him on the proper way to deal with 
this situation. 
 
Underground Storage Tanks 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board. 
Chairman Flynn asked Mr. White to work with Mr. Cullen on costs for the tank removal at Holland Hill School. 
Chairman Flynn also noted that item #1 in this request was approved last year in a Capital Improvement Project 
for a total of $188K for all of the components. 
Chairman Flynn asked Mr. Hiller to contact Mr. Cleary, Bond Counsel, for an opinion on how to handle with 
this item. 
 
Traffic Signal Upgrade for Fairfield Woods and Palm Drive near Library 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board. 
Chairman Flynn asked the First Selectman to inquire if this could be added to the FWMS Project as a traffic 
safety issue. 
 
Lake Mohegan 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board. 
Mr. White showed the plans to the Board for the proposed work and noted that the plan is to bring this facility 
up to current ADA codes. 
 

       Page 4 of 5 



Combined Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance 
Public Budget Hearing 
Minutes of Meeting February 17, 2011 
 
Replace Wood Roof on Old Academy Building 
Mr. White presented this item to the Board. 
Mr. White explained that this item was in the 5 year plan for 4-5 years and now there is a bad leak in the dried 
out roof that really needs replacement before permanent damage is done to the building and its contents. 
 
Chairman Flynn announced that he will speak with the First Selectman about the Capital Plan and report back to 
the Board. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 p.m. 

       Page 5 of 5 


